
1

NOTICE OF MEETING
SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT PANEL

FRIDAY, 8 JULY 2016 AT 3.00 PM

CONFERENCE ROOM A - CIVIC OFFICES

Telephone enquiries to Vicki Plytas on 023 9283 4058
Email: vicki.plytas@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Membership

Councillor Simon Bosher (Chair)
Councillor Ian Lyon (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Alicia Denny
Councillor Ben Dowling
Councillor Scott Harris

Councillor Steve Hastings
Councillor Stephen Morgan
Councillor Darren Sanders
Councillor Tom Wood

Standing Deputies

Councillor Jennie Brent
Councillor Yahiya Chowdhury
Councillor Frank Jonas

Councillor Leo Madden
Councillor Matthew Winnington
Councillor Rob Wood

(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website:  www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is going to be 
taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 12 noon of the 
working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the deputation (for example, 
for or against the recommendations). Email requests are accepted.

A G E N D A

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Members' Interests 

3  Minutes of the Meeting held on 2 February 2016 (Pages 1 - 4)



2

RECOMMENDED that the Minutes of the Meeting held on 2 February 
2016 be confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

4  Update report on Scrutiny (information only) (Pages 5 - 10)

The purpose of the report is to provide information to the Scrutiny 
Management Panel and subsequently full Council on the work undertaken by 
the themed scrutiny panels.

 RECOMMENDED that 

(1) the report be noted and the work done by the panels be 
acknowledged. 
(2) Thanks be formally recorded to all those members of the public, 
witnesses and officers who contributed to the reviews. 

5  Work Programme 2016/17 for the themed scrutiny panels (Pages 11 - 12)

The panel is asked to consider and prioritise topics put forward for review (as 
attached)  to determine the work programme for the Municipal Year for the 
themed scrutiny panels.
An item will be included on future agendas as appropriate to consider any new 
topics put forward for review by themed scrutiny panels.
Chairs of each themed scrutiny panel (or the Chair's representative on that 
panel) are invited to the meeting to provide more information on the topic/s 
their panel has put forward. 
An item will be included on future agendas as appropriate to consider any new 
topics put forward for review by themed scrutiny panels.

RECOMMENDED that the Scrutiny Management Panel determine the 
work programme for the remainder of the Municipal Year for each 
themed scrutiny panel.

6  Date of Next Meeting 

The next meeting is scheduled for Friday 15 July at 2.30pm.
Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social 
media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records 
those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at 
meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the 
meeting's venue.



 
 

 
1 

 

SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Scrutiny Management Panel held on Tuesday, 2 
February 2016 at 1.00 pm at the Civic Offices, Portsmouth 
 

Present 
 

 Councillor Steve Hastings (in the Chair) 
 

Councillors Simon Bosher 
Alicia Denny 
Ben Dowling 
Hannah Hockaday 
Ian Lyon 
Darren Sanders 
 
Officers Present 
Chris Ward s151 Officer and Director of Finance 

 
1. Apologies for Absence (AI 1) 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor John Ferrett and 
Councillor Scott Harris.  Councillor Hannah Hockaday deputised for Councillor 
Scott Harris. 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Simon Bosher.  
Councillors Denny, Hockaday and Bosher each apologised for having to leave 
at around 2.30pm should the meeting not be over by that time. 
 

2. Declarations of Members' Interests (AI 2) 
 
There were no declarations of members' interests. 
 

3. Minutes of the Meetings held on 4 December and 21 December 2015 (AI 
3) 
 
RESOLVED  that the Minutes of the meetings held on 4 December and 21 
December 2015 be confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct 
record. 
 

4. Portsmouth City Council Budget and Council Tax and Capital 
Programme 2016/17 (AI 4) 
 

(TAKE IN SLIDE PRESENTATION) 
Chris Ward, Director of Finance & Information Services (and section 151 
Officer), gave a slide presentation on the budget.  He said it was up to the 
Panel to decide what they wished to scrutinise - the assumptions made or the 
proposals themselves or both. 
 
Mr Ward first gave an overview of what would be covered at this meeting and 
then explained the slides in the presentation. 
 



 
2 

 

As background he explained the overall impact of austerity, the funding 
reductions that had been made so far and the future outlook for funding and 
expenditure.  He outlined the economic context, the Local Government 
funding outlook and the City Council's expenditure outlook. 
 
He went on to explain that the overall aim was to ensure that in year 
expenditure matches in year income over the medium term whilst continuing 
the drive towards regeneration and protecting the most important and valued 
services.  For the period 2017/18 to 2019/20 the aim was to reduce net 
expenditure by £24m.  This is based on the provisional local government 
finance settlement and 4% per annum Council Tax rises until 2019/20. 
 
The slides headed "Revised Budget 2015/16 - £167.2m (net)" show how the 
total underspend of £5.7m was calculated, the proposals for its use and the 
overall impact on general reserves (after the proposals).  Mr Ward explained 
that the total improvement in the financial position 2016/17 amounted to 
£2.7m.  £1.7m of this improvement will be spent in 2016/17 from the Carry 
Forward, therefore the overall improvement in the Council's medium term 
financial position is £1.0m. 
 
Mr Ward advised the panel that the government had offered a 4 year 
settlement to local authorities but that as yet there was no indication of what 
would happen if this was rejected and that a ministerial announcement was 
awaited to provide clarification.  The offer required an efficiency plan but again 
there were no details about what this would involve. 
 
Moving on to Council Tax, Mr Ward explained that Portsmouth was a low 
taxing authority - 10% below the average amounting to being £6m worse off in 
terms of revenue.  In addition there had been a council tax freeze in 4 of the 
last 5 years.  The average tax band is low being Band B and only 75% of 
households pay the full amount of Council Tax (exemption, discount or 
support is received by the remainder).  A referendum would have to be held to 
increase Council Tax by more than 2% each year other than where the 
government has specifically allowed an additional 2% tax increase to be made 
for social care provision.  The proposals going to Council were to increase 
Council Tax by 1.99% with an additional 2% increase for Social Care. 
 
Mr Ward referred to the slides and outlined the recommended savings for 
2016/17, the total spending reductions including 2016/17 and the expected 
savings requirements for 2017/18 to 2019/20.  He then summarised the key 
messages. 
In response to queries, the following matters were clarified: 

 The figures in red on slide 15 - Recommended Savings 2016/17 - 
highlight differences from the savings proposals put forward in 
December. 

 Members wanted to know how confident Mr Ward was about the 
forecast assumptions made given that the variance this year was 
around £1m.  Mr Ward explained that variance was as a result of 
several factors including being cautious about inflation, trying to 
estimate the amount of council tax that would be generated -(and this 
was influenced by how many discounts would apply, how many 



 
3 

 

houses there would be and what bands they would fall within and the 
Council Tax set) and also assumptions made around pay.  The many 
variables meant that the accuracy of assumptions made was also 
variable. 

 Mr Ward said that the contingency fund amounted to £6.7m.  He 
confirmed that if the budget proposals were accepted, it was 
expected that a further £1.4m would transferred into the MTRS 
reserve.  However, this amount was needed to enable future savings 
requirements over the next 3 to 4 years to be "smoothed." 

  

Mr Ward then used the slides to explain the Capital Programme 2014/15 to 
2019/20.  He explained the Capital Resources available amounted to £12.9m 
as detailed on slide 21. Mr Ward said that the capital investment proposals 
only included a small amount for regeneration this time, but this has been 
more substantial in previous years.  He went on to outline the capital 
investment proposals on slide 23.  He explained that around 60% of the 
£12.9m expenditure are of a statutory nature.  Slide 23 shows the capital 
investment proposals split between portfolio reserves and prudential 
borrowing. 
In response to queries about the new build on Eastern Road, Mr Ward 
undertook to find out whereabouts this was on Eastern Road.  Mr Ward said 
that the usual procedure when spending a large sum of money was to obtain 
3 quotations.  The council has used internal valuers and external valuers in 
the past, but is currently using internal valuers  In response to a concern that 
the property had been valued to ensure the Council got best value for its 
money,  Mr Ward said that the Council was under an obligation to get the best 
price. 
Mr Ward then referred to slide 24 saying that there was still likely to be a need 
for more school places from 2018 to 2021 and that at that point, the costs 
would be much higher.  He had estimated a cost of between £6.0 to £10.0m 
and explained that there was no guarantee that PCC would receive any 
funding for this.  The funding gap between PCC's statutory responsibilities 
and obligations is offset by government grants and capital receipts, but is 
likely to be between £12m and £25m.  Consequently, the Council is putting 
forward some proposals that go towards meeting the capital funding gap - 
including revenue contributions to capital.  Mr Ward said that provision for 
match funding will become increasingly important in attracting transport and 
regeneration funds. 
Members considered all the information that had been presented to them.  
They decided that there was nothing that they wanted to put forward to 
Cabinet when it considered the budget proposals before making its 
recommendations to Council.  
 
The meeting concluded at 3.20pm. 
 
. 
 

  

Councillor Steve Hastings 
Chair 

 





THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  
Title of meeting:  
 

Scrutiny Management Panel  
Full Council Meeting  
 

Subject: 
 

Update report on Scrutiny 

Date of meeting: 
 

8 July 2016 
12July 2016 
 

Report by: 
 

Director of Community and Communication 

Wards affected: 
 

N/a 

Full Council Yes 
 

 
 
 
1. Purpose 
The City Council’s Constitution requires information reports to be provided to the Scrutiny 
Management Panel and subsequently full Council on the work undertaken by the scrutiny 
panels. 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that 
 

(1) the report be noted and the work done by the panels be acknowledged. 
(2) Thanks be formally recorded to all those members of the public, witnesses 

and officers who contributed to the reviews. 
 
3. Information Requested 
 
Work undertaken by each panel 
 
Economic Development, Culture & Leisure Scrutiny Panel (EDCL Panel) 
 

a) Retail Review 
 

During the 2014/15 municipal year the panel, chaired by Councillor Julie Swan, undertook 
a review "Revitalising Local High Streets and Secondary Shopping Areas in the City" 
which was completed in March 2015 and submitted to Cabinet on 11 June 2015, where 
the recommendations were endorsed.  The report's recommendations focused on the 
importance of existing and encouraging new  traders' associations and the need for these 
to meet to share best practice.  Further, that the associations should also liaise with the 
appropriate officers to take forward improvements to the retail areas and attract the 
necessary funding.  During the review the Events Application form was reviewed and 
simplified which was welcomed by the traders. 



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
One of the ideas arising from the review was for use of vacant units in the local shopping 
areas for cultural projects  at Allaway Avenue in Paulsgrove, dependent upon Heritage 
Lottery Funding being confirmed. 1 
 

b) Student Opportunities 

For the 2015/16 municipal year the panel, chaired by Councillor Jennie Brent, looked at  
'How to develop wider opportunities - especially to consider involving students from the 
University and those in other further education to the mutual benefit of the students and 
the City Council' 

The panel decided that this topic leant itself to a different type of review from the usual 
evidence gathering over several meetings.  Instead, the panel decided to invite all 
witnesses to attend a one-off evening event on 24 November 2015 (or provide written 
submissions to be represented).  This allowed the panel members to be involved in the 
discussions and feed-back the views of those attending.  This format was also a good 
networking session for taking forward volunteering opportunities by those involved in this 
field.  It was also a useful forum to highlight the positive contribution of students to 
community life with the main contributors being representatives from the University's 
Directorate and Students' Union, from Pompey in the Community and local colleges whose 
students are encouraged to participate in work experience/placements and aspiration 
raising events as well as voluntary events (both one-offs and continued projects) in 
Portsmouth.  The City Council's own involvement in the Portsmouth Together project to co-
ordinate volunteering experiences was also highlighted and the need for co-ordination of 
activities. 
 
The panel looked at examples of good practice across Portsmouth from institutions that 
engage with volunteers and utilise their resource across the city-wide community. The 
panel sought to identify how pupils in schools and students at College and University are 
engaged and encouraged to maximise their opportunities and areas of mutual benefit 
within the locality.  This included work placements through the City Council and 
volunteering placements with various departments as well as apprenticeships with local 
firms. 
 
The way in which this review was carried out drew support from all political groups 
represented and cross-party team working was much in evidence throughout the review 
process. 
 
The report was signed off on 23 March 2016 and went to Cabinet on 9 June 2016 where 
the panel's recommendations were approved in line with the responses noted in section 4 
of the response report. 

 
Housing and Social Care Scrutiny Panel (HSC Scrutiny Panel) 
 
Hospital Discharge Arrangements in Portsmouth  
The Housing and Social Care Scrutiny Panel signed off its report, following six evidence 
gathering meetings hearing from service providers at the City Council including hospital  

                                            
1
 An information report went to the Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure & Sport on 18 March 2016 



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
and health service, housing, occupational therapists and adult social care, Clinical 
Services at Queen Alexandra Hospital, Age UK Portsmouth, the Integrated Commissioning 
Unit and Hampshire Domiciliary Care Providers. The Cabinet on 5 March 2015 supported 
the following recommendations: to continue to improve communication between 
professionals, to require care agencies to provide feedback to the discharge planning 
team, to encourage further evening and weekend discharges and continued involvement 
with patients and their families in the discharge process, and to improve relationships 
between ASC and PHT. 
Cabinet did not support recommendation 1b regarding giving next of kin status to officers 
as the then Head of Adult Services advised that this was incompatible with their 
professional status.   
 
Support services for people aged 16-25 living in isolation 
The panel received evidence from the Young Persons Support Team, All Saints Hostel, the 
Portsmouth Foyer, social work students, City Council housing officers, Motiv8, the Teenage 
Pregnancy Team, Young Parents Support Team and the Positive Family Future 
Transformation Team. During the review it became apparent that from the evidence 
gathered the following were experiencing induced feelings of isolation; young parents, 
young people thrown out of the family home or left by the family, young carers and young 
people leaving foster care. The report was signed off by the panel on 24 March 2016. It is 
expected that the report and the response to it will be presented to Cabinet in September.  

 
Education, Children & Young People Scrutiny Panel 

 
A Review into Pupil Premium in Portsmouth Schools  
The panel carried out a review into pupil premium in Portsmouth schools which was signed 
off in February 2015.  The aim of the review was to investigate how schools are using and 
reporting pupil premium monies and whether the Council could identify and disseminate 
good practice. It was also intended to use the process to ensure that all schools are 
sharing information about pupil premium appropriately.  The panel received evidence from 
education officers, governors and head teachers to understand the different ways pupil 
premium grant (PPG) is being used, the impact it is having on schools, the role of the LA in 
supporting schools with pupil premium and the level of awareness of governors on the use 
of the pupil premium grant in their schools. A short questionnaire was also sent to all 
chairs of governors to ascertain further information about the level of involvement of 
governing bodies. After analysing the responses from the questionnaire it was found that 
while many governing bodies review PPG at their Finance Committee, the impact of PPG 
is not being reviewed as much as it could be.  The majority of governing bodies said that 
PPG was well understood by all governors in their schools.  However the responses also 
suggested that further training specifically on PPG would be welcomed to ensure that 
governors understand fully how to measure the impact. 
 
The Panel noted that overall standards in Portsmouth have risen since PPG has been 
introduced and PPG eligible children are catching up with the non PPG 
children.  However, as highlighted in the Ofsted Annual Report 2014, more needs to be 
done in the city. The panel noted some excellent initiatives that are in place for improving 
education outcomes for pupils and understood that different interventions worked for  
 



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

4 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
different schools and there is no 'one size fits all' with regard to pupil premium 
programmes.  
 
A number of recommendations were made by the panel all of which were supported when 
the report was considered by Cabinet at its meeting in March 2015.  
 
Review of Progress against the Youth Offending Team Action Plan  
 
The panel carried out a review into the Youth Offending Team Action Plan, which was 
drawn up following an Ofsted inspection in November 2013 which had identified particular 
weaknesses in Portsmouth, together with higher than average rates of reoffending The 
review was completed in June 2015.   
 
The panel received evidence from both internal and external witnesses.  It noted that good 
progress is being made with reducing re-offending rates and reducing custody rates with 
figures continuing to decrease, although the figures for first time entrants had increased 
slightly as compared with 12 months ago. The panel welcomed the progress made to date 
on implementing the actions on the YOT improvement plan and particularly welcomed the 
co-location of CAMHS and substance misuse workers within the YOT Team.   
 
Recommendations were made by the panel and the report went to Cabinet in September 
2015 where the recommendations were supported.  
 
A Review into Home to School Transport and Access to Primary School Places 
 
The panel completed this review in February 2016. The aim of the review was to look at 
developing proposals around home to school transport especially where children have 
been unsuccessful in being allocated a place at their first choice school and to consider 
the more general issues relating to access to primary school places and the distance away 
from their home. The panel received evidence from officers in the admissions team, pupil 
place planning team and school transport team to understand the current arrangements for 
allocating home to school transport and primary school places, and learned what the 
council is doing to meet the demand for primary school places.   
 
The panel noted that since the introduction of the home to school transport policy in 2014 
there has been a decline in non-statutory travel assistance and there has been a reduction 
in the overspend on the transport budget for 2014/15.  It also noted that the council's 
sufficiency programme has created additional primary school places to meet the current 
demand and there are contingency plans in place for some schools to run a 'bulge year' if 
necessary. The panel felt that the issue of primary school places has largely been 
addressed and is being monitored and the main focus should now be on ensuring there 
are enough secondary school places.  
 
The report and response report were considered at the Cabinet meeting on 9 June where 
the recommendations in the scrutiny panel's report were supported subject to the 
following: in relation to the panel's recommendation (4) concerning moving the sibling 
criteria above catchment area for primary schools, the outcome of government 
consultation will be awaited before anything is done in this regard.  Also in relation to  



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

5 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
recommendation (5), the council will be undertaking an options analysis during 2016/17 
before considering a city-wide consultation. 

 
Traffic, Environment & Community Safety Scrutiny Panel 
 
Review of road safety around schools  
The aim of the review was to assess the role of education in improving the safety of pupils, 
the role of enforcement of the current traffic regulations and to evaluate the effectiveness 
of the road safety measures that are currently in place outside schools.  This review was 
concluded in March 2015. 
 
The panel concluded that everyone has a role to play to ensure the safety of our children 
by complying with the parking regulations and teaching children road safety. 
 
Cabinet accepted the panel's recommendations in line with the responses noted in 
paragraph 4 of the response report by the Director of Transport, Environment, and 
Business Support. 
 
Review into how community safety partners can work together to reduce demand and cost 
for intensive specialist services currently supporting individuals with complex needs.  
 
At its meeting on 13 October 2015 the Scrutiny Management Panel allocated the review of 
community safety to the TECS scrutiny panel.  The review is ongoing. 
 
In relation to complex cases of anti-social behaviour, the panel is aiming to identify ways 
that services could work more effectively together to 1) manage individuals with complex 
needs 2) reduce demand, 3) encourage residents to self-help and 4) intervene earlier to 
avoid cases becoming increasingly difficult to resolve. 

 
Health, Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

 
Over the last 12 months, the panel scrutinised regular updates from local NHS 
organisations and Portsmouth City Council.  It also looked at: 
 

 The provision of HIV medication 

 Congenital heart services review. 

 Lowry Unit Project Closure 

 Better Care Fund, Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and the Care Act 2014  

 Reconfiguration of vascular services 

 Cervical Screening Update 

 Dementia Update  

 Healthy Weight Strategy and Challenges around Obesity  

 Tamarine Respite Care Unit 

 Healthwatch Annual Report  

 Guildhall Walk Health Care Centre proposals from the CCG 



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

6 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 Independent review of deaths of people with a Learning Disability or Mental Health 
problem in contact with Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust - April 2011 to 
March 2015. 

 Introduction to Integrated Personal Commissioning  

 Portsmouth Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 

 Solent NHS  Trust - mental health, St James and Baytrees and drug and alcohol 
pathways in the city 

 Repatriation of Vectis Way Phlebotomy Clinic Proposal  
 

 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by (Director) 
 
 
Appendices: None 
 
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 



SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT PANEL 

Suggested Topics for Review 

2016/2017 

TECS  

 Review of Parking and Transportation 
 
EDCL 

 Smart City Agenda - To consider the use of the digital market to support 

economic growth in the city.  This will include looking at sources of 

government funding and examples from elsewhere such as Glasgow which 

was a pilot area for 'Future Cities'.  This will also link to sustainable cities and 

the importance of attracting investment.  There would be consideration of 

skilling people to use technology and access points provided by the council as 

well as encouraging accessibility of council services through digital 

applications. 

 Creative Industries in the City - To look at the economic value of creativity 

in the city and its potential as a strong growth area.  To consider Arts Council 

funding opportunities and the expanded use of council owned buildings to 

expand on the success of projects such as the ARTches and to encourage 

the participation of young people in community arts events. 

ECYP  

 Continuation of the review into Child Sexual Exploitation 

 Widening Access to extra-curricular activities in schools 

 Bullying in schools with a particular focus on how to combat online 

bullying 

 Safer routes to school. 

H&SC 

This panel met on Monday 4 July and put forward the following topics :- 

 Housing Need and Empty Properties in Portsmouth and the impact of 
Government Policy 

 Housing Allocations  

 Independent Living - how we support individuals in their independent 
living, who can live independently and should they live independently. 




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 2 February 2016
	4 Update report on Scrutiny (information only)
	5 Work Programme 2016/17 for the themed scrutiny panels

